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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of DS Digital Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)in the mannerso required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of'the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2020, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(ICAI) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basts for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is drawn to Note No. 11.1 regarding non provision of interest on outstanding amount of
MSME Supplier.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Govemance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
pninciples generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
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going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. '

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the approprateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. OQur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure. and content of the standalone financial




statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3
and 4 of the order.

2. We are not expressing our opinion on compliance of section 197 of the Act as this section
1s not applicable on the company.

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(f) waith respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For V. P. Jain &Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration numbegr: 015260N

cutha K.

Sarthak Madaan
Partner
Membership number: 547131

Place: New Delhi , =
Date: 17.06.2020 el
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the DS Digital
Private limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we

report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

In respect of fixed assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained records showing particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets. Description / Model No. / Identification No. of
Assets are not recorded in the register. It is informed that records are being updated.

The Company has a programme of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the said programme, it is certified by the management that certain fixed
assets were physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. We have relied upon the
management. In respect of fixed assets given on operating lease to various schools,
company has obtained the confirmation of assets of certain schools duly signed by
the schools and it 1s certified by the management that no material discrepancies
were found in respect of assets installed at those schools.

Company does not have any immovable property and therefore requirements of title
deeds as per para 3(i)( c) of the order are not applicable.

As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified at the end of the year by the
Management and no material discrepancies noted on such verification. We could not take
the physical verification due to Covid-19 Pandemic lockdown.

The Company has not granted loans to parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Thus, paragraph 3 (ii1) of the Order
1s not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and certified
by the company loans and investments made are in compliance of section 185 and 186 of
the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits during the year.

Requirement of maintenance of cost records are not applicable to the company.



(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has generally been
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident Fund,
Employees State insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory
dues in arrears as at 31.03.2020 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. During the year company has paid reimbursement of Rs. 5.34
Lacs towards hiring of workforce through third party, evidence regarding the
payment of statutory dues i.e PF /ESI is pending from the third party.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess which have not been
deposited as at 31.03.2020 on account of any dispute except as follows :

SI Name  of | Nature of Dues | Amount | Forum where dispute is
No. | Statute Rs/lacs | pending.
1 U.P. Penalty u/s 54 |27.50 Matter is set aside for re-
VatAct, (1)in FY 2012 - adjudication.
2008 13

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank,
Government during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term
loans have been applied by the company during the year for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

Provision of section 197 of the Act is not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, -transactions with the related parties in respect of



availment of services are in the nature of specialized/customized services for which
market prices are not available. In absence of the same transactions are certified on arm’s
length basis and we have relied upon the same In respect of other transactions the same
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of all
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
1s not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934,

ForV. P. Jain &Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 015260N
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SarthakMadaan
S b AN Partner
/1 N Membership number: 547131
Place: New Delhi [l ’ﬁ '
Date: 17.06.2020 \o\ At
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report



Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DS Digital Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our
audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting




A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 015260N
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Sarthak Madaan
P00 Parmer
' [ \ Membership number: 547131

Place: New Delhi =’ o
Date: 17.06.2020
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

{Amount in X)
. As at As at

Particulars Notes 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 8,25,83,837 10,93,39,268
Intangible assets 4A 19,46,04,933 18,68,29,857
Right-of-use assets 4B 1,40,57,375 -
Other intangible assets under development 4C 1,77,18,540 1,85,29,321
Financial assets
- Loans 5B 31,88,203 30,71,686
Deferred tax assets (net) 28A 13,29,41,771 13,83,44,180
Other non-current assets 7 14,92,551 16,68,041
Total non-current assets 44,65.87,210 45,77,82,353
Current assets
Inventories 6 1,99,62,502 42,44,080
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 5A 7,27,34,973 8,25,62,289
- Cash and cash equivalents 5C 20,73,236 33,04,075
- Loans 5B 24,81,289 22,85,681
Other current assets 7 1,73,41,008 2,21,74,122
Total current assets 11,45,93,008 11,45,70,247
Total assets 11.80.21 7.
Eguity and liahilities
Equity
Equity share capital 8 34,72,89,200 34,72,89,200
Other equity 9 (35,42,68,094) (27,18,30,371)
Total equity (69,78.894) 7,54,58,829
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10A 31,24,92,131 29,33,63,364
- Other financial liabilities - -
- Lease liability 13 1,08,56,060 -
Provisions 14 40,95,654 50,48,048
Total non current liabilities 32,74.43,845 29,84,11,412
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10B 14,33,03,614 8,60,84,139
- Trade payables 1t
(a) Total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises 70,56,349 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,44,12,754 6,52,84,236
- Other financial liabilities 12 3,41,61,093 3,77,37,433
- Lease liability 13 42,33,313 -
Other current liabilities 15 69,02,967 84,90,585
Provisions 14 6,45,177 8,85,967
Total current liabilities 24,07.15,267 19,84,82,360
Total equity and liabilities 56,11,80.218 57,23.52.600
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

For and on behnlla ﬁhe Board of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Director
DIN : 00282988

gl -

At Kumar Goyal (. Sof
Company Secrctary i]3

outhal
Snthak Madah

Partner
Membership No.: 547131
Fr. No. : 015260N

AR AL

Arvind Srivastava
Chicf Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 17 06.2020




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Amount in X)

Particulars . Notes

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

I Revenue from Operations
II Other Income
11T Total Income (1+1I)

TV Expenses
Purchases of Stock in trade
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade
Employee benefits expense
Selling and distribution expenses
Finance cost
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Total expenses

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - [V)

VI Exceptional item
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V - VI)

VIII Tax expense:
Current tax
Income tax adjustment related to earlier years
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge
Total tax expenses

IX Profit (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII)

X Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)

X

(=

XII Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26

21

16,02,02,819 20,13,45,796
2,65,96,506 1,50,26,033
18,67,99,325 21,63,71,829
2,34,98,261 3,12,37,824
(1,57,18,422) (4,76,868)
3,49,20,702 5,59,96,331
1,43,55,550 4,86,55,720
4,85,02,465 3,71,99,777
8,79,35,054 6,09,41,458
7,04,79,406 6.30.45,527
26,39,73,016 29,65,99,769
(7,71,73,691) (8,02,27,940)
(7.71.73.691) (8,02,27,940)
53,66,431 (1,14,11,145)
53,66,431 (LI14,11,145)
(8,25,40,122) (6,88,16,795)
1,38,377 8,20,814
(35,978) (2,13,412)
(8,24,37,723) (6,82,09,393)
(2.38) {1.98)
(2.38) (1.98)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V. . Juin & Associntes : For and on behalf ol
Chartered Accountants

f- ; ...‘l"'lll‘u

< Surthak Madnun Higfanshi Gupta
Purtner : | reetor
Membership No.: 547131 S0 R otz DIN : 00054015
Fr. No. : 015260N

sﬁwﬂm}t ol (h,

="y

\Jn\i)&#— SAAIS

Place : New Delhi Arvind Srivastava

Date :17.06.2020 Chief Financial Officer

W Bourd of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited

QAL

\'*)im.{sh Kamar Thunjhnuwaly

Director
DIN : 00282988

Manish Kumar Goyal
Company Secretary




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital:

Equity shares No. of shares Amount in ¥
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of Rs. 10 each)

As at 1 April 2018 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2019 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200
Increase/(decrease) during the year - %
At 31 March 2020 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200

B. Other equity

(Amount in%)

Reserve & Surplus Equity component of Non
Particulars 3 A Cumulative Optionally Total
Retained Earnings Convertible Preference Share
As at 1 April 2018 (39,03,12,472) 18,66,91,493 (20,36,20,978)
Profit for the period (6,88,16,795) - (6,88,16,795)
Other comprehensive income for the year 6,07,402 - 6,07,402
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6,82,09,393) - (6,82,09,393)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (45,85,21,864) 18,66,91,493 (27,18,30,371)
Profit for the period (8,25,40,122) - (8,25,40,122)
Equity component of Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible
Preference Shares (Refer Note 9.1) 2,66,91,493 (2,66:91493)
Other comprehensive income for the period 1,02,399 - 1,02,399
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (5,57.:46,230) (2,66,91,493) (8,24,37.723)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (51.,42,68,095) 16,00,00,000 (35,42,68,094)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V. P. Jain & Associates For and on behalf of thé Bourd of Directors of DS Digital Private Limited
Chartered Accountants -~ -
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Sarthak Madaan qj"H

Proprietor
Membership No.: 5 17131
Fr. No. : 015260N

Director
DIN : 00282988
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Place : New Delhi Arvind Srivastava Manish Kumar Goyal
Date : 17.06.2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary_
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Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Amount in T)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax (7,71,73,691) (8,02,27,940)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 7,04,79,406 6,30,45,527
Interest expense 4,85,02,465 3,71,99,777
Provision for Doubtful Debts 1,56,23,308 50,22,255
Amounts Written off 31,83,804 93,898
Fixed Assets written off 2,86,549 -
Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (Net) (12,27,215) (6,89,465)
Fair Value Gains on Financial Instruments 45,195 (1,08,647)
Employee Benefit Expenses 1,38,377 8,20,814
Other Adjustments 41,867 33,478
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,99,00,065 2,51,89,698
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables (1,38,15,132) (27,01,390)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions (11,93,184) (3,47,590)
(Decrease)/increase in other current liabilities (11,24,067) 20,30,272
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (82,16,133) (47,95,711)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,57,18,422) (4,76,869)
(Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities (33,27,992) 22,93.810
(Tncrease)/ in Other financial Assets 46.51.284 (37.04.583)
Cash generated from operating activities 2,11,56,419 1,74,87,638
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) - -
Net cash Nlow from operating activities (A) 2,11,56,419 1,74,87,638
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including capital work in progress and capital advances (4,64,58,478) (7,23,60,132)
Proceed from sale of fixed assets 208,733 35,000
Net eash used in investing activities (B) (4,62,49,745) (7,23.25,132)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

1,91,28,767

8,67,85,619

Proceeds from short tertn borrowings 5,69,71,127 51,87,919
Repayment of Lease Liability (37,34,942) -
Interest paid (4.85,02.465) (3,71,99,777)
Net cash (used in)/flow from finaneing activities (C) 2.38.62,487 5.47,73,761
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (12,30,839) (63,733)
Cagh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33,004,075 33,67.808
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the venr 20,73,236 33,04,075
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 8,17,550 1,17,409
Balances with banks

- on current account 12,55.686 31.86.666
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 16) 20,73.236 33.04,075

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For V. P. Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountiunts

Sarthak Madaan W2\ AL
Partner '/ N
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Fr. No. : 015260N =

Place : New Dethi
Date : 17.06.2020

Arvind Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer
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Manish Kumar Goyal
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2.2

2.3

Company Information

DS Digital Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated and
domiciled in India and has its registered office at A-27, 2nd Floor, Mohan Co-Operative
Industrial Estate, New Delhi-110044, India.

The Company is a subsidiary of S Chand and Company Limited one of India’s largest and
oldest publishing and education service providers. 3

DS Digital product range comprises of Digital classroom, Student learning solution, tablet
solution, Hands on lab, Language lab, Teacher training and Learning centres.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of Compliance

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with IND AS and Disclosures thereon
comply with requirements of IND AS, stipulations contained in Schedule- III (revised) as
applicable under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as amended form time to time, other pronouncement of ICAI,
provisions of the Companies Act and Rules and guidelines issued by SEBI as applicable.

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in revised Schedule - III to the
Companies Act, 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities. '

Based on the nature of business and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 12
months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of current/ non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis except Income from pre-school educational activity are accounted for on
receipt basis, except for the following material items that have been measured at fair value
as required by relevant Ind AS:

a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair values (as required
by the relevant Ind AS)

b. Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits and

c. Foreigh commission expenses
Use of significant accounting estimates, judgement and assumptions

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described below, the
directors of the company are required to make judgements estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a. The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
for the reporting period.

b. In case of Property, plant and equipment, the charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

c. Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which this entity operate (i.e. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the
national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

d. Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the
amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of
changing facts and circumstances.

e. Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/ claim / litigations against the Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

f. The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan / other long term benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation / other long term benefits are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation / other long term benefits is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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2.4 Property, Plants and Equipments

These tangible assets are held for use in supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. These are recognized and carried under cost model i.e. cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any which is akin to recognition criteria under erstwhile
GAAP.

a) For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 01, 2016 measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

b) Subsequent to transition date, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of
acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental to
acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and installation including site restoration
up to the time when the asset is ready for intended use. Such Costs also include
Borrowing Cost if the recognition criteria are met.

c) When a major inspection/repair occurs, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous inspection/repair is
derecognized.

d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

15 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress) is provided on straight line over the useful life of the
relevant assets net of residual value whose life is in consonance with the life
mentioned in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of
computer or peripherals where useful life is estimated six years based upon
post experience in providing hardware to schools.

ii. In the case of assets purchased, sold or discarded during the year,
depreciation on such assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of
such addition or as the case may be, upto the date on which such asset has
been sold or discarded.

iif. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and in case of
any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

e) Components relevant to fixed assets, where significant, are separately depreciated on
SLM basis in terms of their rate specified in the schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013.

f) During sales of fixed assets any profit earned / loss sustained towards excess /
shortfall of sale value vis-a-vis carrying cost of assets is accounted for in statement of
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2.5 Intangible Assets

a) For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2016 measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

b) Subsequent to transition date, Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net
of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use, het charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

c) Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably

d) Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

e) Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
live. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

f) In case the assets are internally generated/upgraded then at capitalized development
cost subject to satisfaction of criteria of recognition (identify, control and future
economic benefit) laid down from clause 11 to 17 of IND AS 38.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost (including direct
cost and salary of employees) less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss. Research costs are recognized as expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

2.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that
an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate
of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying
value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accountmg periods may no longer
exist or may have decreased.
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2.7 Financial instruments
I) Financial assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair
value or as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent Measurement

For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:-

¢ Financial Assets at fair value
¢ Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized
entirely in the statement of profit and loss, or recognized in other comprehensive
income.,

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost.

e Business Model Test: The objective of the company’s business model is to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

o Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the foillowing two conditions is measured at fair value
through OCI:-

¢ Business Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets.

e Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity
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investments for which the entity has elected irrevocable option to present value
changes in OCI.

Impairment of financial assets:-

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model at an
amount equal to:-

e 12 months expected credit losses, or
o Lifetime expected credit losses

Depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

However, for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

II) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held
for trading, or it is a derivative or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
Liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gain or losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognisedin
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in
statement of profit and loss.

2.8 Revenue Recognition

Sales have been recognized with the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of
the goods, with the company losing effective control or the right to managerial involvement
thereon and the revenue (representing future economic benefit associated with the
transaction) including cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction are
measurable reliably and the recovery of the consideration is probable.

Income from Customised Interactive Content is recognised on completion of Initial training
at the school premises in case of Domestic schools and on the basis of installation of
software in International schools. Income from export customised interactive education
services is accounted on invoice raised.

Sales are measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Sales
recognized are net of Goods and Services Tax, Sales tax, service tax, VAT intermediary
sales, rebates and discount.

Incentives on exports related to operations as provided by government are recognized in
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books after due consideration of certainty of utilization / receipt of such incentives.

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest method.

Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in financial statements except for
cash flow information.

2.9 Employee Benefits
Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows:
a) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognised
as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-employment benefits
i) Defined Contribution Plan

_ The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fund and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s
defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the
related services.

ii) Defined benefit plan

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of
service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is
paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act 1972,

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services

Actuarial gain / loss and other components of re-measurement of net defined benefit
liability (asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining components of costs are
accounted for in statement of profit & loss.

iii) Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present
value of the other long term employee benefits is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined
benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet
date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations. Actuarial
gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of
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profit and loss as income or expense. Gains or losses on the curtailment or
settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when the curtailment or
settlement occurs.

Actuarial gain / loss and other components of re-measurement of net defined benefit
liability (asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining components of costs are
accounted for in statement of profit & loss.

2.10 Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

Deferred tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax
assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing taxation laws.

2.11 Foreign commission expenses

Subject to an agreement the company has obligation to pay commission in foreign currency
in respect of export services on the basis of actual receipt from the schools.

2.12 Foreign Currency Translation
i) Functional currency

The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s
functional currency.

ii) Initial Recognition \ / / /‘h}‘
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Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at rate of overseas currency ruling on
the date of transactions. Gain / Loss arising on account of rise or fall in overseas
currencies vis-a-vis functional currency between the date of transaction and that of
payment is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

iii) Subsequent Recognition
Monetary Assets in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the
exchange rate ruling at the Reporting Date and the resultant gain or loss, is accounted
for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-Monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

iv) Impact of exchange fluctuation
Impact of exchange fluctuation is separately disclosed in notes to accounts.

2.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributed to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset till such time the
asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment
to the borrowing costs.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized as expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
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2.16 Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost for the
purpose of valuation of Inventory is determined in accordance with the method prescribed
by the IND AS-2 oh 'Valuation of Inventories'.

2.17 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are
discounted to its present value as appropriate.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected
cost of terminating the contract.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed whén there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance sheet date.

2.18 Lease
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

the contract involves the use of an identified asset,

the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through,
the period of the lease and

the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU)
asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) renewable every
year and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head Iease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, “Leases” and applied the
standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective
method. Accordingly comparatives for the year ended March, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting
policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019.
Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the ROU asset at its carrying
amount. The Financial effect has been disclosed in Note No 34.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

3. Property, plant and equipment
{Amomtind)

Particulars Fu l:lllll.li‘t & O.fﬁce Cnm!)u(ers & Vehicles Fl?nl & Total
Fixtures Equipment Pheripherals Eguipment
Cost .
As at 1 April 2018 1,05,34,948 28,12,811 15,80,59,481 4,08,916 11,12,872 17,29,29,027
Additions 22,800 3,77,657 1,97.43,801 - - 2,01,44,258
Disposals - (31,200) (13.69,554) - - (14,00,754)
As at 31 March 2019 1,05,57,747 31,59,268 17,64,33,728 4,08,916 11,12,872 19,16,72,531
Additions - . 32,87,162 - - 32,87,162
Disposals/wrilten off - - {4.96.125} (4,08.916) - (8,35,141)
As at 31 March 2020 1,05,57,747 31,59,268 17,92,94,665 - 11,12,872 19,41,24,553
Lol depreciath
As at | April 2018 37,36,475 10,30,184 4,92,05,021 76,742 2,06,152 5,42,54,575
Charge for the Year 16,62,918 6,76,211 2,68,94,002 45,624 1,01,009 2,93,79,765
Deductions (0) - (13,01,076) ~ - (13,01,076)
As at 31 March 2019 53,99,394 17,06,395 7,47,97,947 1,22,366 3,07,161 8,23,33,263
Charge for the Year 11,59,787 5,99,619 2,76,42,176 - 1,03,863 2,95,05,444
Deductions - - (1.75.h25) (1,22,366) - (2,97,991)
As at 31 March 2020 65,59,180 23,06,013 10,22,64,498 - 4,11,025 11,15,40,716
Net block
As at 31 March 2019 51,58.354 14,52,873 10,16,35,781 2.86.549 8,05,711 10,93,39,268
As at 31 March 2020 39,98,567 8.53,255 7,70,30,167 - 7.01.848 8.25,83,837
4A Intangible assets
(Amount In¥)
. arnflix Mobile Learnin Computer
Easticulars tAE|1."¢:Iz‘l(‘,outent Contentg Sol'upurt o
Grass block
As at 1 April 2018 - 20,86,76,203 26,46,928 21,13,23,131
Purchascs/internal development . 5,70,05,305 - 5,70,05,305
Disposals/Transferred to Block . - - -
As at 31 March 2019 - 26,56,81,508 26.46,928 26,93,28,436
Purchases/internal development (Refer Note 4.2) 4,27,95,712 5,80,294 6,06,092 4,39,82,098
Disposals/Transferred to Block - = -
As at 31 March 2020 4,27,95,712 26,62,61,802 32,53,020 31,23,10,534
4 tulut relation
Asat 1 April 2018 - 4,67,81,782 10,51,034 4,78,32,816
Amortization for the year . 3,31,11,296 5,54,467 3,36,65,763
Deductions - » - -
As at 31 March 2019 = 79893078 16.05,501 8,14,98,579
Amortization for the year 7.24,042 3,46,95,010 7,87,970 3,62,07,022
Deductions - . - -
As at 31 March 2020 7,24,042 11,45,88,088 23,93.471 11,77,05,601
Net block
As at 31 March 2019 - 18,57,88,430 10.41.427 18,68.29,857
As at 31 March 2020 4,20,71,670 15,16,73,714 8.59.549 19.46,04.933
4B. Right-of-use (Amount in%)
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars

March 2020 March 2019

Balance as at beginning of the year - -

Recognised on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 {Leases) (in respect of building) 1,88,24,315 -
Addition - -
Deletion - -
Depreciation 47,66,940 .
Balance as at end of the year 1,40.57.375 -

4C. Intangible assets under development (Refer Note 4.4)
(Amount in¥)

As at 31 March 2019 1.45,29,321
As at 31 March 2020 1,77,18,540

4.1 Employee benefit expenses of Rs 1,46,57,670/- (Previous Year: Rs 2,09,04,337/-) has becen capitalised under the intangible assets and intangible assels under development

4.2 Addition in Learnflix Mobile Application & Content include advertisement of Rs 38.28 lacs meurred for launching of Leamflix Application.

4.3 Munagemenl s of view thal classwise segregation of 1evenuc 15 not possible and therelore impainment exercise cannol be done classwise Management carries the exercise ol the
ympatiment on the busts of projeet and i is certified that there 1s o impainment dunng the yeat

4.4  Detads of Intangible assets under development as on 31 03 2020:

fAmaunE in )
. I Expected .
Particulars Closing Value ) ] Expected Cost
Completion Date
Destination Success 1.40,21.,208 30 092020 15 lacs
Leawnflix - 36.97.371 30.09 2020 48 lacs
Tatul S L o P B 1,77,18,579
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

5. Financial Assets

5A. Trade receivables

(Amount in )
Particulars R LIl
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good * 7,27,34,973 8,25,62,289
Doubtful 2,76,62,722 3,63,16,810
10,03,97,696 11,88,79,100
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Doubtful (2,76,62,722) (3,63,16,810)
(2,76,62,722) (3.63,16,810)
Net Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good ** 7,27,34,973 8,25,62,289
Doubtful E >
7,27,34,973 8,25,62,289
Current 1,27,34,973 | 8,25,62,289
Non-Current = -

* [n absence of confirmations considered good by the Management. .
**No debts are due from drictors or other officers of the company cither severally or jointly with any other person.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

5B. Loans
(Amount in 3)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Security deposits - Non Current 31,88,203 30,71,686
Security deposits - Current 24,81,289 22,85,681
Total Loans and Advances 56,69,492 53.57.367
Current 24,81,289 22,85,681
Non-Current 31,88,203 30,71,686
Unsecured, considered good 56,69,492 53,57,367
Unsecured, considered doubtful
56,69,492 53,57,367
5C. Cash and cash equivalents
(Amount in I)
N As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 12,55,686 31,86,666
Cash in hand 8,17,550 1,17,409
Total Cash and cash equivalents 20,73,236 33,04,075
6. Inventories
(Amount in )
Particul As at As at
artewiars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Stock-in-Trade (As taken, valued and certified by management) 1,99,62,502 42,44,080
Total Inventories 1,99,62,502 42,44,080
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

7. Other Assets

TA. Prepaid expenses

(Amount in )
. As at As at

gardculars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 3,92,551 5,68,041
Prepaid expenses {Current) 7,57,861 9,09,588
Total Prepaid expenses 11,50,412 14,77,629

. Other assets
(Amount in %)
) As at As at

Papmeuiars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Deposit with government authority (Refer Note 7B.1) 11,00,000 11,00,000
Advance Taxes, TDS & Other Receivable

-TDS (FY17-18) - 29,02,523
-TDS (FY18-19) 35,80,019 23,018,132

- TDS (FY19-20) 20,16,393 -
- Duty Credit Scrips (Refer Note 7B. 2) - 34,63,194
- Export Incentive (Refer Note 7B. 3) 79,47,338 56,16,530
- GST Credit Recoverable 14,87,363 13,17,231
Advance to Suppliers 11,86,884 52,02,120
Advance to employees Imprest 3,65,150 4,44,804
Total Other assets 1,76,83,147 2,23,64,534
Current 1,73,41,008 2,21,74,122
Non-Current 14,92,551 16,68,041

7B.1 Paid towards levy of penalty of Rs 27.50 Lacs under UP VAT. The matter has been set asside by the Apellate Authority so amount is recoverable and
Management is of view that amount will be received in FY 2020-21.

7B.2 Non Transferable Duty Credit Scrips of Rs 34.63 Lacs written of on account of expiry.

7B.3 Represents for FY 2016-17 (Rs. 20,37,779/-), FY 2017-18 (Rs. 12,28,930/-), FY 2018-19 (Rs. 23,49,820/-) and FY 2019-20 (Rs. 23,30,808). In the opinion of
management amount is considered good for recovery and will be received in FY 2020-21.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

9.1

Share Capital
(Amount in )
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised
3,70,00,000 (31 March 2019: 3,70,00,000) equity shares of Rs 10/- each 37,00,00,000 37,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
3,47,28,920 (31 March 2019: 3,47,28,920) equity shares of Rs 10/- each 34,72,89,200 34,72,89,200

34,72,89,200 34,72,89,200
a. Reconciliation of the shares ding at the b and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares Numbers Amount in Rs.
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
As at 1 April 2018 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200
Increase/(Decrease) during the period - -
As at 31 March 2019 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200
Increase/(Decrease) during the period - -
As at 31 March 2020 3,47,28,920 34,72,89,200

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares and one class of Preference shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vole per share, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Share capital held by holding y and their subsidiaries
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
S Chand And Company Limited 17,68,67,500 17,68,67,500
Safari Digital Education Iniliatives Private Limited 17,03,71,650 17,03,71,650

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

No. of shares held

% of holding

S Chand And Company Limited 1,76,86,750 50.93%
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 1,70,37.165 49.06%
Other Equity
(Amount in ¥)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Retpined enrni
Balance as the Beginning of reporting period (45,85,21,864) (39,03,12,472)
Add: Surplus during the year (8.25,40,122) (6,88,16,795)
Add: Equity Component (I) Preference Shares 2,66,91,493 -
Add: Other Comprehensive income 1,02,399 6,07,402
Balance as the cnd of reporting period (A) (51,42,68,094) (45,85,21,864)
Equity component of prefevence: shares
Equity component (I Preference shares) - 2,66,91,493
Equity component (1T Preference shares) 16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
Balance as the end of reporting period (B) 16,00,00,000 18,66,91,493
Total (A+B) (35,42,68,094) (27,18,30,371)

The option of conversion has not exercised by Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited on expiry of 5 years hence Equity Component (1 Prefernce Shares)
has been transferred to retained earnings and debt component has become payable at 31 March 2020 and accordingly shown as unsecured current borrowings,
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I Preference shares

Company offered and issued 61,70,400 1% optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares (“OCNCPS”) of Rs 10 each to Safari Digital Education Initiatives
Private Limited (“Safari Digital” or the “Holder”) as per special resolution passed on 24th March, 2015, Safari Digital is wholly owned subsidiary of S Chand And
Company Limited

Convertible Preference share shall have preferential right vis-a-vis Equity Share of the Company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a
winding up or repayment of capital.

Convertible Preference share shall have non- cumulative and non-participating in surplus fund.

Convertible Preference share shall have optionally convertible into equity shares of the Company after a period of 2 years from the date of issue at the option of the
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

Convertible Preference share Shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Act;

After 5 years, if not converted into Equity Shares then it shall be mandatorily re-decmed

1% optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares

Particulars Asat i
a 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As per last Balance Sheet 6,17,04,000 6,17,04,000
Changes during the period s -
Balance at end of year 6,17,04,000 6,17,04,000
The reconciliation of the ber of shares ling is set out below:
Particul As at As at
i 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Preference shares at the beginning of the period 61,70,400 61,70,400
Add: Issue of Shares = -
Preference shares at the end of the period 61,70,400 61,70,400
The details of sharcholders holding more than 5% preference shares of the Company:
As at As at
Namelef Shancholders 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 61,70,400 61,70,400
(100 % shareholding)
61,70,400 61,70,400

II Preference shares

Company offered and issued 1,60,00,000 % optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares (“OCNCPS”) of Rs.10 each as per special resolution 3 Lst

August, 2016 to S Chand And Company Limited.

Convertible Preference share shall have preferential right vis-a-vis Equity Share of the Company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case ofa

winding up or repayment of capital,

Convertible Preference share shail have non- cumulative and non-participating in surplus fund
Convertible Preference share shall have optionally convertible into equity shares of the Company after a period of 2 years from the date of issue at the option of the DS
Digital Private Limited.

Convertible Preference share Shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Act;
After 5 years, if not converted into Equity Shares by the Holder then it shall be mandatorily re-deemed.

1% optionally convertible non-cumulative Preference Shares As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As per last Balance Sheet 16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
Changes duting the period ] -
Balance at end of period 16,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:

Particulars As at e

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Preference shares at the beginning of the period 1;60,00,000 1,60,00,000
Add: Tssue of Shares - -
Preference shares at the end of the period 1,60,00,000 1,60,00,000

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares of the Company:

As at As at
Name of Shareholders 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
S Chand And Company Limited 1,60,00,000 1,60,00,000
(100 % shareholding)
/l,ﬂU,UU__LIUFJ 160,000,000
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial stat t as at 31 March 2020

10. Borrowings

10A. Non-current borrowings

(Amaunt in T)

Particulars Asiat Asut

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured Loans
Siemens Financial Services Private Limited (Refer Note [0A.1 3,00,07,994 4,35,50,127
Hewiett Packard Financial Services (India) Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.1 23,82,686 -

Unsecured Loans
Preference Shares - Liability component
Loan from related party
- Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.2
- S Chand and Company Limited (Refer Note 10A.3)
- Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.4;
- Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.5)
- Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited (Refer Note 10A.6)

Total Non-current borrowings

Less : Current Maturities of long Term Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings after deduction of current maturities of long term borrowing:

Secured Loan
Unsecured Loans

10A.1. Secured loans are charged against the Movable Fixed Assets of the Company

5,50,92,860

6,03,31,564 5,66,19,475
11,19,28,193 7,49,77,662
63,35,517 57,74,696
9,29,91,850 5,18,86,129
3,14,39,618 2,86,36,054
33,54.17.422 31,657,003
2,29,25,291 2,31,73,639
31,24,92,131 29,33,63,364
3,23,90,680 4,35,50,127
30,30,26,742 27,29,86,876

10A.2. Includes Interest Bearing Loan for Rs 5,36,00,000/- (Mar'19 Rs.5,36,00,000/-) and interest accrued of Rs. 67,31,564/- (Mar' l9 Rs 30,19,475/-)
10A.3. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 9,69,53.450/- (Mar'l9 Rs 6,75,53,450/-) & Interest accrued Rs,1,49,74,743/- (Mar'19 Rs.74.24,212/)
10A.4. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 50,00,000/- (Mar'l9 Rs 50,00 ,000/-) & Interest accrued Rs. 13,35,517/- (Mar'19 Rs.7.74,696/-)
10A.5. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 8.50,00,000/- (Mar'l9 Rs.5,00,00,000/-) & Interest accrued Rs.79,91,850/- (Mar'19 Rs.18,86,129/-)
L0A 6. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs 2,50,00,000/- (Mar'l9 Rs 2,50,00,000/-) & Interest accrued Rs.64,39,618/- (Mar'l9 Rs.36,36,054/-)
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITEDR
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to fi ial

as at 31 March 2020

10B. Current borrowings

11.

(Amount in¥)
. As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured:

Cash credit from banks - (Refer Note [0B.1)
Standard Chartered Bank

Unsecured :

Loans from related parties-
Safad Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited (Refer Note 9.1)
S Chand and Company Limited (Running account) (Refer Note 10B.2)
Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited

Total

Secured
Unsecured

2,46,40,356 4,21,75,144
6,17,04,000 -
4,81,82,644 3,59,09,433
87,76,614 79,99,561
14,33,03,614 8,60,84,139
2,46,40,356 4,21,75,144
11,86,63,258 4,39,08,994

10B.1. Exclusive charge on entire current assets and movable fixed assets (except assets which are exclusively charged under equipment financing)

10B.2. Running Account with S Chand and Company Limited is interest free.

Trade payables

(Amount in )
Particul As at As at

articuars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 70,56,349 .
Total outstanding dues of related entities 1,72,09,701 1,46,117
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterrprises & small enterprises 2,72,03,053 6,51,38,119
Taotal Trade payables 5,14,69,103 6,52,84,236
Current 5,14,69,103 6,52,84,236
Non-Current = =

11.1 Tnformations regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information avilable with the company

Company has not provided interest as no supplier has demanded any interest.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL.2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2020

12

13

14

15

Other financial liabilities

(Amount in )

-] As at As at
articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Expenses Payables 71,34,948 89,55,839
Employee salary Payable 10,80,816 33,83,373
Current maturities of long-term Borrowings 2,29,25,291 2,31,73,639
Other financial liabilities (Employees Imprest) 30,20,038 22,24,583
Total other financial liabilities 3,41,61,093 3,77,37,433
Current 3,41,61,093 3,77,37,433
Non current - =
Lease Liability
(Amount in )

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Lease Liability (Current) 42,33,313 -
Lease Liability (Non-Current) 1,08,56,060 -
(In respect of building taken on lease)
Total Lease Liability 1,50,89,373 -
Current 42,33,313 -
Non current 1,08,56,060 -
Provisions
(Amount in )

Particul As at As at

ik 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for retirement benefits

- Giatuity 26,60,936 30,87,904

- Leave Encashment 20,79,895 28.46.,111
Total Provisions 47,40,831 59,34,015
Current 6,45,177 8,85,967
Non current 40,95,654 50,48,048
Otbher liabilities

{Amount in J)

Particul As at As at

il 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Other payables:
Statutory dues 15,85,862 42,76,344
Advance from customers (as certified by management) 53,17,105 42,14,241
Total Other liabilities 69,02,967 84,90,585
Current 69,02,967 84,90,585
Non current o - -
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to i ial stat t for the year ended 31 March 2020

16.

16.1

Revenue From Operations
(Ampunt in¥)
) For the year ended For the year ended
Parbctiars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of products
Finished goods 64,14,986 4,01,90,957
Sale of services (Refer Note 16.1) 15,14,57,025 15,88,05,019
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentive 23,30,808 23,49,820
Total revenue from operations 16,02,02,819 20,13,45,796
Detail of sale of services
Domestic
Customized Interactive Education Services 8,41,52,599 9,29,77,819
Income From Pre School Educational Activity 1,14,81,170 1,40,88,517
Leamflix Ebooks 92,027,096 -
Export
Customised Interactive Education Services 4,66,16,160 5,1738 683
15,14,57,125 15,88.05,019
Includes Rs 54.56 Lacs [Previous Year: Rs, 32.70 Lacs) pertaining to the next financial year (refer accounting policy Note No2.).
Other Incomes
{Amount in %)
) For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Foreign Exchange Rate Difference 12,27,215 6,89,465
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1,60,137 1,96,193
Provision reversed on account of Actual Bad Debt 2,42,77,396 1,30,25,897
Fair Value Gain on Security Deposit 4,68,205 407,672
Other Income 4,63,553 7,06,807
Total other income 2,65,96,506 1,50,26,033




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL.2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

18. Purchase & implementation cost
(Amount in¥)
Particul; For the year ended For the year ended
articutars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Computer & Peripherals 65,27,610 3,06,67.824
E Books 1,68,64,451 -
English Labs (Kit) 1,06,200 5,70,000
Total Purchase & implementation cost 2,34,98,261 3,12,37,824
19. (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{Amount in )
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articufars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Trade Items 42,44,080 37,67,212
Inventories at the end of the year
Trade [tems 1,99,62,502 42,44,080
(Tncrease)/decrease in inventories (1,57,18,422) (4,76,868)
20. Employee Benefits Expenses
(Amount in Y)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, Wages, Allowances 2,72,18,552 4,33,87,716
Provident Fund & ESI 23,37,155 27,24,628
Staff Welfare and Medical Insurance 10,64,763 11,77,626
Gratuity 8,74,231 9,70,490
Leave encashment 71,71 5,67,401
Bonus and Exgratia 4.86,301 7,82,508
Other Benefits to Staff 28,67,929 63,85,962
Total employee benefits expenses 3,49,20,702 5,59,96,331
21. Selling and Distribution Expenses
(Amount in )
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advertisement and conference expenses 20,99,186 36,67,431
Travelling and boarding expenses 97,81,773 1,72,04,150
Freight, cartrage and installation expenses 13,54,740 53,67,548
Marketing & Channel expenses (Refer Note 21.1) 9,14.977 2,22,42,758
Business promotion 2,04,874 1,73,833
Total selling and distribution expenses 1,43,55,550 4,86.55,720
21.1 Due to termination of agreement with commission agents no commission has been paid on Export of Services in FY'19-20.
22. Finance Cost
(Amount in )

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Interest Expensc

on term loan 50,12,498 59,88,204
on other loan 3,13.54 910 2,45.23.274
on Lease Liability (ROU) 18.57,058 “
Others 32,39,023 1,07,196
Fair Value Loss on Preference Shares 66,11,140 59,02,808
Bank Charges 4,27,836 6, 18,204
Total finance viyt 48502465 ~— AT
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020

23. Other Expenses

{Amount in T)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Office Expense

Professional /Consultancy charges
Conveyance Expenses

Electricity & Gensel Expenses

Repair & Maintenance

Office Stationery

Telephone

Rent expenses

Auditor's Remuneration (Refrer Note 23.4)
Amount written off (Refer Note 23.1)
Insurance Expenses

Rates & Taxes (Refer Note 23 2)

Bad Debts Written Off

School Van Running Expense

Provision for Expected Credit Loss

Fair Value Loss on Security Deposit
Fixed Assets written off

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Miscellaneous Expenses (Refer Note 23.3)
Total other expenses

26,49,181 41,80,023
1,07,56,604 5446618
3,54,587 3,46,341
13,97,877 19,55,886
93,40,351 83,01,718
158,658 340,640
3,14,470 8,25,762
23,85,007 88,45,045
3,50,000 3,50,000
36,47.356 3,77,053
1,45,938 1,48,483
55,77,834 49,437
2,42,77,397 1,30,25,897
13,29,962 18,69,011
1,56,23,308 50,22,255
5,13,400 2,99,025
2,86,549 -
41,867 33,478
§7,84,708 95,24,786
#,79,35,054 5,09.41,45%

23.1 Includes Non Transferable Duty Credit Scrips amounting Rs 34.63 lacs (PY: Nil), amounts written off Rs 1.84 lacs (PY: Rs 2.61 lacs)
23.2 Includes Rs 40.63 lacs on account of lability recognized on the basis of Service Tax Audit for the period April 2014 to June 2017.
23.3 Includes security charges Rs. 9.27 lacs (PY: Rs.12.82 lacs), courier charges Rs 3.57 lacs (PY: Rs, 10.21 lacs), computer expenses 6.71 lacs (PY : Rs 6.25 lacs),
shared management services as certitied by management to holding company is Rs 41.68 lacs (PY: Rs 51.67 lacs) and educational scrvices Rs 23.24 lacs (PY:

24,

Nil)
244 Payment to suditor (Amount in ¥)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
- 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As auditor
For Audit 3,50,000 3,50,000
Reimbursement of expenses = .
3.50,000 50,000
Depreciation and Amortisation Exp
(Atnount in ¥)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

25.

26.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Depreciation of property, plant & equipement 2,95,05,444 2,93,79,765
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,62,07,022 3,36,65,763
Amortisation of Right-of-use asset A 47,606,940 -
Total depreciation and amortisation expnese: 704.79,406 6,30,45.527
Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCL
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shown below:
(Amount in T)
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Re-measurment gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Earnings per share

1,38,377 8,20814
(35.97%) (L1341
1,02.399 6,07.402

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The following retlects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Net Loss after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity (8,25,40.122) (6.88,16,795)

Shareholders

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominalor for calculating 3.47.28,920 3,47.28,920

Busic EPS

Face Value per equity share 10 10
Basic Eamnings per share (2.38) (1 98)
Diluted Earnings per shure (238) (1 98)
Note: The effect ul et ayerite poreniii Equity sharcs to be issted at the time of conversion of optionally convertible preference shares is anfyiljtiss

nature and heticd ot Lonsiilerdil w Csldilation of dilutive eamings per share
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to financiil stilement for the vear ended 31 March 2020

27
A,

i1

v

V1

vl

Vi

Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees, The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employement, of an amount cquivalent to 15
days salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs on completion of 5 continuous years of service as per Indian law

However, no vesting condition applies in case of death

The Company has provided for gratuity based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unil Credit Method

The following table scts out for the status of gratuity plan:

{Amount lnT)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the yea
Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year 30.87,904 32,33,755
Service Cost : -
Current service cost 6,66,924 7.42,545
Past service cost
[nterest Cost 2,07,307 2,27,945
Benefit payments directly by employer (11,62,822) {2,95,527)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Demographic (204))
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Financial 2,62,475 48,061
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Experience (4,00,648)| (8,68,875)
Defined Benefit Ohligation at the end of Current Year 26.60,936 30,87,904
(Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
There is no plan assets
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Net defined benefi liability (asset) at prior year end 30,87,904 32,33,755
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 8,74,231 9,70,490
Total remeasurements included in OCIT (1,38,377) (8,20.814)
Direct benefit payments by Employer (11,62,822) (2,95,527)
Net defined benefit liahility (asset) - end of perind 26,60,936 30.87.904
Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year
Service cost 6,66,924 7,42,545
Net interest cost 2,07,307 2,27,945
'Tatal expense recognised in the emplovee benefit expenst 8.74.231 9,70,490
Recognised in other comprehensive income for the yeai
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, Beginning of Period (7,58,142) 62,672
Total remeasurements included in OCI (1,38.377) (8,20,814)
Cumulative OCI - {Income)/Loss, End of Period (8.96.519) (7.58.142)
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligatior
Year 1 3,17,683 3,77,023
Year 2 327458 4,23,226
Year 3 3,19,346 4,23,833
Year 4 3,01,599 3,97,075
Year 5 2,86,371 5,58,158
Year 6 to 10 11,38,398 12,40,661

Signifi Actuarial As for thie dete

ol the difined bunelit obligation are discount rate and expiccted suluty inercuse.
‘Flié sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occuring al the end of
llie reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constanl. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

Quantitative senstivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below

a) Impacl of change in discount rate
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Impact of change

Impact of change

Discount Rate

Withdraw] rate

Discount rate - 100 basis points 28,32,594 32,59,322
Discount rate + 100 basis points 25,07.986 29,33,181
Discount rate - 100 basis points (1,71,658) (1,71,418)
Discount rate + 100 basis points 1,52,950 1,54,723
b) Impact of change in salary
Present Valuc of obligation at the cnd of the period
Rate - 100 basis points 25,27,008 29,31,493
Rate + 100 basis points 28,04,885 32,54,625
Discount rate - 100 basis points 1.33,928 1.56,411
Discount rate + 100 hasis points -1.43.949 (1.66.721)|
Actuarial assumptions

3% 7 15%)
Futuie salary increase G0N 6.00%
Future salary increase (Sccond Y ear Onwards) B0 8 00%
Retirement Age (years) 00 Yeary 60 Yeary
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability TALM (2012-14) 1ALM (2006-08)

I 5% 15%

The actuaiial valuation of the piesent valuation of defined benefit obligalion were cartied out as at March 31. 2020, [ he present value

of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cosl, were measured using the Projected Uy

Credit Method

As per para #3 of Tnd AS T3 Mg e e s diseoun) pust-omployment benefit obligations {(both [umbed
determined by refenmueto b s hism the end ot vho reporting penod on yevierment bonds

il be




B. Leave Encashment

In respect of leave encashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of a y d actuarial valuation in pt of the Company’s
leave rules

The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.

The following table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan:

(Amount in T)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

i Change in present valve of definéd benefit obligation during the year

Mefined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year 28,446,111 30.,47,850
Gervice Cost : -
Cuprent service cost 6,85,795 9,09,079
(CGiain)/L.oss on curtailments (6.85,795) -
Interest Cost 1,85,302 2,07,934
Benafit payments directly by employer (8.37.987) (7.69.140)
Actirntial (Gain) / Loss - Demographic (128) -
Aeliarial (Gain) / Loss - Financial 1,96,127 41,503
Aeluarial (Gain) / Loss - Experience (3.09,530) (5.91.114)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of Carvent Vein 20.79.895 28.46.111
14 Change in fair value of plan assets during the year - *

| There is no plan assets

m Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet

Nel defined benefit liability (asset) at prior year end 28,46,111 30,47,850
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 71,771 5,67.401
Total remeasurements included in OCI - =
Direct benefit payments by Employet (8.37.987) (7.69.140)
Net defined henefit liahility (asset) - end of periad 20,79.895 28,446,111
v Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the yea
Service cost - 9,09,079
Net interest cost X 1,85,302 2,07,934
[mmediate recognition of loss (1,13,531) (5,49,611)
Total expesse recognised in the employee benefit expense 71,771 5,67,401
v Recognised in other comprehensive income for the yea

Cumulative OCI - (Tncome)/Loss, Beginning of Period - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI E -

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, End of Period . -

VI Maturity profile of defined benefit obligatior

Year | 327,494 5,08,944
Year 2 2,69,024 4,18,690
Year3 2,46,687 3,76,737
Year 4 2,26,188 3,38,957
Year 5 2,07,376 3,73,394
Year6to 10 831,355 11,02,583

VII Quaniitative senstivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below

a) Impact of change in discount rate
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Discount rate - 100 basis points 22,06,548 29,94,149
Discount rate + 100 basis points 19,66,977 27.12,508
Impact of change

Discount rate - 100 basis points (1,26,653) (1,48,038)
Discount rate + 100 basis points 1,12,918 1.33,603

b) Impacl of change in salary
Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Rate - 100 basis points 19,76,424 27,09,916
Rate + 100 basis points 21,93,554 2994333
Impact of change

Discount rate - 100 basis points 1,03,471 1,36,195
Discount rate + 100 basis points (1,131,659 (1,48.222)

VIl |Actuarial assumptions

Discount Rate .3 7.15%
Future salary increase (For First Year) .0 6.00%
Future salary increase (Second Year Onwards) .00 8 00%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 60 Years)
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 1ALM (2012-14) TALM (2006-08)
| Withdrawl 1ate 15% 15%:

/A




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

28A  Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax is calculated, in full, on all ternporary timing differences under the liability method based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date. The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

(Amount ind)
For the year ended 31 March, 2020
Particulars As at 31 Recognised in As at 31 March,
March, 2019 | Profit & Loss | oclI 2020
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (3,06,60,736) (28,92,535) - (3,35,53,271)
A)  (3.06,60,736) (28,92,535) - (3,35,53,271)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets
Carried Forward Losses 4,82,25,895 (1,93,39,324) - 2,88,86,571
Unabsorbed Depreciation 10,97,93,807 1,54,66,503 - 12,52,60,310
Provisions 1,09,85,214 13,98,924 (35,978) 1,23,48,160
(B) 16,90,04,916 (24,73,896) (35.978) 16.64.95,042
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13,83.44,180 (53,66,431) (35.978) 13,29.41,771
For the year ended 31 March, 2019
Particulars Asat31 Recognised in As at 31 March,
March, 2018 | Profit & Loss | ocl 2019
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (3,46,92,796) 40,32,060 - (3,06,60,736)
(A) (3,46,92,796) 40,32,060 - (3,06,60,736)
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets
Carried Forward Losses 5,22,26,898 (40.01,003) - 4.82,25.895
Unabsorbed Depreciation 9,63,68,817 1,34,24,990 - 10,97,93,807
Provisions 1,32,43,529 (20,44,903) (2,13,412) 1,09,85,214
(B) 16,18,39.244 73,79,084 (2.13,412) 16.90,04,916
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12,71,46,448 1,14,11,144 (2,13,412) 13,83,44.180

28A.1 The Board of Dircctors at its meeting held on November 14, 2017 & April 06, 2018, approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”)
amongst Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited (“Company™), Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited (“Nirja”), DS Digital Private Limited
("DS Digital"), Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited ("Safari") and 8 Chand And Company Limited (“S Chand”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors. The said Scheme had been filed with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench for its approval. The
Scheme inter alia includes amalgamation of Blackie & Nirja with and into S Chand, demerger of the education business of DS Digital & Satari with
and into S Chand and amalgamation of residual business (afier demerger) of DS Digital with and into Safari. NCLT vide its order dated February 10,
2020 had directed to convene meetings of sharcholders, secured & unsecured creditors of 8 Chand and meeting of secured & unsecured creditors of
Nirja and DS Digital (“the meetings™) for approval of the Scheme. Duc to Covid19 pandemic and nationwide lockdown the meetings were adjourned.
NCLT vide its order dated May 29, 2020 has directed to convene the meetings through video conferencing in the month of July 2020.

The Company has accounted for deferred tax assets on the brought forward losses on the ground that scheme of merger would be effective w.e.f.
01.04.2017. During the year Rs. 54.02 Lacs (net of Rs 30.95 Lacs income on account of mesging business) has been accounted for expense by
reversing the deferred tax assets of Rs. 84.97 Lacs (accounted in earlicr years) on account of non-probabilities of eaming taxable differences in future
relating to non merging business

28B  Tax Exy {Amount in )
Particulars For the year ended ended 31 March
31 March 2020 2019
(a) Income Tax charged or credited to Staement of profit and Loss during the year
In Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax
Deferred Tax Credit 53,66,431 (1,14,11,145)
In Other Comprerhensive Income
Deferred Tax Credit 35,978 2,13,412
Total 54,02,409 (1,11,97,733)
(b) Reconciliation of tax expenses
Accounting Loss before tax (7.71,73,691) (8,02,27,940)
Applicable Tax Rate 26.00% 26.00%

Computed Tax Expense (2,00,65,160) (2.08,59,264)

Tax effect of :

Tax impacl on lapsed B/F Losscs 1,48,11,377 59,06,379

Tax impacl on Raise Centre Losses (not accounted for)/ others o 90,88,198 .

Tux lmpact on / 15,67.994 37,55.152
5402410

(1.11,97.733) - -

Tax Expenses |_-cc0_'g'nii:t"u_‘l'rg'Sl_qgmuunl of Profit and Loss

o4 Avﬁ




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to fi ial stat for the year cniled 31 March 2024

29 Related Pavey Disclosyre

Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is given as under in respect of related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

a) Related parties and their relationship
1) Holding Company -S Chand and Company Limited
2) Associate Companies / Firms -
3) Companies under same Management -Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

-Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited
-Edutor Technologies India Private Limited
-Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited
-New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
-Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
-Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
-S. Chand Edutech Private Limited
-Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited
-Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited
-BPI (India) Private Limited
4) Director’s Substantial Shareholdings -Hotel Tourist
-SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited
-§ Chand Properties Private Limited
-S. Chand Hotels Private Limited
-Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited
-HMR Sports Ventures Private Limited
-Amenity Sports Academy Private Limited
-Amenity Public School
5) Key Management Personnel - Mr. Himanshu Gupta
- Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
- Mr. Manish Kumar Goyal, Company 8 v (Appointed w.e.f. 17.05.2018)
- Mr. Rajagopalan Chandrashekar, Ind dent Director (Appointed w.c.f. 07 08 2018)
- Mr. Arvind Srivastava, Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e f. [1,02,2019)
- Mr. Sharad Talwar, Independent Director
- Mr. Naveen Kundu, CEO (Resigned w.e.f. 30.09.2019)
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to ial for the year ended 31 March 2020

30 Contingent Liabilities
{Amount in T)
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Particulars

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

L. VAT claim by U. P, VAT Act 27,50,000 27.50,000
2. Conlractual Obligations - -
27,50,000 27,50,000

Company has paid Rs 11 Lakhs for levy of penalty U/S 54(1) of U P VAT Act vide Appelate order the order has been set aside for re-adjudication

31 Unhedged furelgn survency exposure : -

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
[Trade receivables: - (Amounl in %) (Amount in ¥)
Qatari Riyal 10,35,500| QAR 50,000 20.71/- pet QAR 44,65,667| QR 234,998 | 19 00/- per QAR
UAE Dirhams 1,96,79,769| AED 9,58,586 20.53/- per AED 13,91,537| AED 73,900 | 18 B3/~ per AED
Omani Rial 56.465| OMR 288 196,06/- per OMR
Total 2,07,71,734 58.57.204

32 Financial [nstruments - Accounting classifications and fair value measurements

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the i could be d in a current ion between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

A Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, and other financial instruments approximate Lheir carrying amounts largely due to

B Financial instruments with fixed and variable inlerest rates are evaluated by the pany based on p such as inlcrest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this
evaluation, allowances are taken to the accouat for the expected losses of these receivables.
The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair vaiue of fi nancial i by valuati hni
Level I Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for idenlical assets or liabilities that the entity can access al the measurement date
Level 1 Inpuls other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirccly
Level I Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
{Amount in T)
Carrying amount |
As at 31st 2020 Fair Value Level ITT
Financil nuscts at amortived cost
Trade receivables 7,27,34973 7,27,34973
Cash and Bank balances 20,73,236 20,73,236
Loans 56,69,492 56,69,492
Total 8,04,77.700 8.04.77.700
Financinl liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings 45,57,95,745 45,57,95,749
Trade payables 5,14,69,103 5,14,69,103
Other financial liabilities 3,41,61,093 3,41,61,094
Total 54,14,25,941 54.14.25.946
33 Aaldi infarmati
31 Marvh 2020 31 March 2019
tAmuunt bn T {Amstin b T

Fimterimge ss [y =

A Export of goods /Services 4.66,16,160 5.17.38.683
4,66,16.160 5.17.38.683

Toepomabiory (1) e (ogmEey

A Traveling 16,89.218 50,37925
B Marketing/Branding & C frt s 1,31,09,042
16,89,218 1.81.46.967

34 Effective Aprll 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases", applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective
method Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted On transition, the adoption of the new
standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of Rs 188 24 Lacs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs. 150,89 Lacs. The effect of this adoption
has decreased PAT by Rs. 7 64 Lacs and EPS by INR 0.02 per share. The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of ind AS 116 to short-term leases
of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term
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35 Previous Year Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary o
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